
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Agenda for the 

Allendale Charter Township Board Meeting 

Monday, February 28, 2022, 6:00pm 

Members Present: 

Members Absent: 

Guests Present: 

 
Meeting called to order  

 
 Invocation given by Bruce Zeinstra 
 Pledge of Allegiance  
 Approve Agenda 
 Consent Agenda 

o Approval of the February 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
o Bills 
o Interim Bills 

 For information 
o Financial Report 
o Minutes of the February 7, 2022 Planning Commission Meeting 
o Fire Department 2021 Year End Report 

 Public Hearings 
 Public Comments 
 Guest Speakers  
 Action Items 

o 2nd Reading: 2022-02- Zoning Map Amendment, Centennial Farm Rezoning 
o 2nd Reading: Ordinance 2022-03- General Commercial Special Use- Moratorium 
o 2nd Reading: Ordinance 2022-04- Zoning Text Amendments; Zero Yard Setbacks: 

Office, General Commercial & Industrial Districts 
o Hiring Recommendation: Substitute Library Page & Circulation Assistant 

 Discussion Items 
o Project Plutus Presentation 
o CDBG Rich St (Public Hearing on March 14) 

 Public Comments 
 Board Comments 
 Future Agenda Items 
 Adjournment 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

Our Wi-Fi connection may be used to access the Board Information Packet: 

• Account: ACT_Guest 
• Password: ACTguest 
• File location: www.allendale-twp.org  Agendas and Minutes  Agendas: Township Board 

 

http://www.allendale-twp.org/


Page 1 of 5 
 

PROPOSED 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE 
TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FEBRUARY SESSION 1ST DAY 
 

The Allendale Township Board of Trustees met at the Allendale Township 
Auditorium, located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, on Monday, February 14, 2022, 
at 6:00 p.m. and was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mr. Elenbaas. 
 
Present: Mr. Zeinstra; Ms. Kraker; Ms. Hansen; Mr. Vander Wall; Mr. Murillo 
and Mr. Elenbaas. (6) 
 
Absent: Ms. Vander Veen (1) 
 
Staff and Guest Present: Sergeant Cal Keuning, Sheriff Department; Deputy 
Joe Apolo, Sheriff Department; Kevin Yeomans, Assistant Administrator; 
Greg DeJonge, Ottawa County Commissioner; Chief Mike Keefe, Allendale 
Fire Department; Lieutenant David Marshall, Allendale Fire Department; 
Sergeant Erick Busscher, Allendale Fire Department;  Captain Tony Dolce, 
Allendale Fire Department; Deputy Chief Randy Bosch, Allendale Fire 
Department; Firefighter Mitch Lass, Allendale Fire Department; Lieutenant 
Kyle Garlanger, Allendale Fire Department; Firefighter Mike Augustyn, 
Allendale Fire Department; and Sam Sterk. 
 
Mr. Murillo pronounced the invocation. 
 
Mr. Elenbaas led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America. 

 
BOT 22-016 Mr. Vander Wall moved to approve the agenda of today with the following 

amendment: to add Sergeant Cal Keuning and Deputy Joe Apollo to Guest 
Speakers. The motion passed.  

 
BOT 22-017 Ms. Kraker moved to approve the following Consent Resolutions: 
 

1. To approve the Minutes of the January 24, 2022, Board of Trustees meeting. 
 

2. To approve the general claims in the amount of $764,994.58 and $33,889.54 
interim payments, as presented by the summary report for February 15, 2022.  

 



Page 2 of 5 
 

The motion passed.  
 

Items Received for Information 
 

1. Financial Report 
 

2. Minutes of the January 17, 2022, Planning Commission Meeting 
 
3. Planning Commission 2022 Work Program 
 
4. Sheriff’s Department December Monthly Report 
 
5. Sheriff’s Department January Monthly Report 
 
6. Fire Department January Monthly Report 
 
7. Wombat Award 
 
Public Hearings- None 
 
Public Comments and Communications - None 
 

BOT 22-018 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 

 Guest Speakers 
 

Commissioner Greg DeJonge provided an Ottawa County update including: 
GVSU Student Senate meeting, the Ottawa County newsletter captured the 
attention of many area residents, specifically the Smart 9II Program; Deputy 
Michael DeVito received the Ottawa County Customer Service Award; an 
overview of 211 services that are available; Walk for Warmth charity event; 
various winter activities available at Ottawa County Parks; Loyalty Bonuses 
for Ottawa County employees; departmental annual reports have begun, 
many are available online; and Grand Marshall idea for the 4th of July parade. 
Specifically, Commissioner DeJonge would like to honor all our health care 
workers and have them be the Grand Marshalls for our next parade. He 
indicated he is willing to help with this however he can.   
 
Sergeant Cal Keuning introduced Deputy Joe Apolo to the board. Deputy Joe 
Apolo provided a brief introduction and background of himself.  
 



Page 3 of 5 
 

Several board members had questions and comments. 
 

 Action Items 
BOT 22-019 Mr. Elenbaas introduced Ordinance 2022-02 Zoning Map Amendment, 

Centennial Farm Rezoning; an ordinance amending certain property in the 
Township to the GC General Commercial Zoning District; for its first reading.  

 
BOT 22-020 Mr. Elenbaas introduced Ordinance 2022-03 Zoning Text Amendment Ordinance; 

an ordinance that will add Section 14.07 – Moratorium: to place a moratorium on 
the construction of mini warehouse and self-storage facilities as a special use in 
the General Commercial District for 12 months of the Allendale Charter Township 
Zoning Ordinance; for its first reading. 

 
BOT 22-021 Mr. Elenbaas introduced Ordinance 2022-04 Zoning Text Amendment, Zero Yard 

Setback Ordinance; an ordinance that will amend Section 4.01D – Zoning Districts 
to change the Article 8 reference; will amend Article 8 – R-2 Medium Density 
Single and Two-Family Residential District by changing its title name; will amend 
Section 13A.05(3) – Area Regulations, Side Yard to allow a zero yard side setback 
when a building is proposed in conjunction with an abutting lot and built of fire-
retardant construction; will amend Section 13A.05(4) – Area Regulations, Rear 
Yard to allow a zero yard rear setback when a building is proposed in conjunction 
with an abutting lot and built of fire-retardant construction; will amend Section 
14.05B – Area Regulations, Side Yard to allow a zero yard side setback when a 
building is proposed in conjunction with an abutting lot and built of fire-retardant 
construction; will amend Section 14.05C – Area Regulations, Rear Yard to allow a 
zero yard rear setback when a building is proposed in conjunction with an abutting 
lot and built of fire-retardant construction; will amend Section 15.05B – Area 
Regulations, Side Yard to allow a zero yard side setback when a building is 
proposed in conjunction with an abutting lot and built of fire-retardant 
construction; will amend Section 15.05C – Area Regulations, Rear Yard to allow a 
zero yard rear setback when a building is proposed in conjunction with an abutting 
lot and built of fire-retardant construction; will amend Section 16.06B – Area 
Regulations, Side Yard to allow a zero yard side setback when a building is 
proposed in conjunction with an abutting lot and built of fire-retardant 
construction and; will amend Section 16.06C – Area Regulations, Rear Yard allow a 
zero yard rear setback when a building is proposed in conjunction with an abutting 
lot and built of fire-retardant construction of the Allendale Charter Township 
Zoning Ordinance; for its first reading. 

 
BOT 22-022 Mr. Zeinstra move to approve and authorize the Clerk and Supervisor to sign 

Ordinance 2022-01 Zoning Text Amendments Ordinance; an ordinance 
amending the text in Section 24.06H- Waste Disposal Facilities; and amending 
Section 24.06J- Building Appearance; and providing for repeal and 



Page 4 of 5 
 

severability provisions; and the effective date of this ordinance. The motion 
passed.  

 
BOT 22-023 Ms. Kraker moved to approve the promotion of Ann Bates to Circulation 

Assistant II at a wage of $16.01 per hour. The motion passed. 
 

 Discussion Items 
 Kevin Yeomans, Assistant Administrator, gave the board a brief overview of 

the township financial status. He indicated that the last couple of years have 
been better than expected, with a surplus of $600,000.00 unanticipated 
funds.  

 
 Kevin Yeomans, Assistant Administrator, provided an update on the fire 

station. He highlighted the updated timeline and what processes have been 
completed thus far. He gave a recap of three various bids on the project and 
an assessment of the general contractor interviews. Given the uptick in 
construction costs, bids came in a little higher than originally anticipated. All 
the bids will require additional funding to proceed with project construction. 
The three bids are as follows: Erhardt Construction- $5,571,000.00; 
Wolverine Building Group- $5,517,000.00; and EV Construction- 
$5,857,000.00. After careful consideration, Mr. Yeomans indicated the 
selection committee recommends Erhardt Construction with a bid of 
$5,571,000.00 for the project. He informed the board that a budget 
amendment in the amount of $410,000.00 will be required to cover the total 
costs of the project if the board approves the committee’s recommendation.   

 
 Several board members had questions and comments.   
  

 Action Items 
BOT 22-024 Mr. Murillo moved to select and approve the Fire Station Construction bid 

submitted by Erhardt Construction in the amount of $5,571,000.00, and to 
authorize the Supervisor to sign the appropriate contract and paperwork. The 
motion passed. 

 
BOT 22-025 Mr. Zeinstra moved to approve 2022 budget amendments 3 and 4; a 

$410,000.00 transfer from the General Fund to the Fire Station Building Fund. 
The motion passed as shown by the following votes:  
 
YEAS: Mr. Zeinstra; Ms. Kraker; Mr. Vander Wall; Mr. Murillo; Ms. Hansen; 



Page 5 of 5 
 

and Mr. Elenbaas. (6) 
 
NAYS: None (0) 
 
ABSENT: Ms. Vander Veen (1) 

 
Public Comments and Communications- None 
 

BOT 22-026 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 
 Board Comments 
 
 Mr. Elenbaas inquired as to whether the board was interested in having our 

own 911 services rather than contracting with the county. The board was not 
interested in pursuing this option.  

 
 Ms. Hansen provided a brief update on elections for the township. It has been 

discovered that three homes in Allendale Township are part of Hudsonville 
School District and therefore will require a May election. She is working with 
neighboring jurisdictions to consolidate precincts and accommodate these 
voters.  

  
BOT 22-027 Mr. Vander Wall moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:11 p.m. The motion 

passed.  
 
 
 
                            _________________________     _________________________ 

Jody L. Hansen, Clerk Adam Elenbaas, Supervisor 
Of the Township of Allendale Of the Township of Allendale 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 











ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
February 7, 2022 

7:00 p.m.   

Allendale Township Public Meeting Room  

 

1. Call the Meeting to Order 

2. Roll Call: 

Present: Longcore, Zuniga, Adams, Nadda 

Absent: Zeinstra, Chapla, Westerling 

Staff Present: Planner Greg Ransford, Kevin Yeomans 

Public: Chris Adamson 

3. Received for Information:  

4. Motion by Nadda to approve the January 17, 2022 Planning Commission Minutes as presented. 

Seconded by Adams. Approved 4-0 

5. Motion by Loncore to approve the February 7, 2022 Planning Commission Agenda as presented. 

Seconded by Zuniga. Approved 4-0 

6. Public Comments for non-public hearing item: 

Chairperson Longcore opened the public comment section for non-public hearing items. 

A. Fire Station Update – Kevin Yeomans 

Mr. Yeomans provided an update to the Planning Commissioners on the status of the Fire Station 

Project including a few minor changes to the plans. 

Commissioners asked Mr. Yeomans about plans for the current building and any plans to update 

that building. Mr. Yeomans stated that there will be spaces opened when the Fire Department 

moves into their own building, but no plans yet to make any updates to the current building. 

No more comments were made, and Chairperson Longcore closed the public comment section. 

7. Public Hearings: 

A. Text Amendments 

• Section 4.01D – Zoning Districts 

• Article 8 – [Title change] 

• Section 13A.05(3) – Area Regulations, Side Yard 

• Section 13A.05(4) – Area Regulations, Rear Yard 

• Section 14.05B – Area Regulations, Side Yard 

• Section 14.05C – Area Regulations, Rear Yard 

• Section 14.07 – Moratorium 

• Section 15.05B – Area Regulations, Side Yard 

• Section 15.05 C – Area Regulations, Rear Yard 

• Section 16.06 B – Area Regulations, Side Yard 

• Section 16.06C – Area Regulations, Rear Yard 

Planner Ransford introduced the Amendments. 

Chairperson Longcore opened the floor to public comments. No comments were made, and he closed 

the public comment section and opened for Commissioner and Staff comments. 



Motion by Adams to recommend adoption of all proposed text amendments to the Board. Seconded 

by Zuniga. Approved 4-0 

8. Site Plan Review: 

9. Old Business: 

A. Master Plan 

Planner Ransford reviewed the history of the Master Plan discussion. Planner Ransford presented 

the revised Future Land Use map. 

Mr. Adams inquired as to the process of review. Planner Ransford responded that the Township 

will notify surrounding municipalities and then after the required 63 days of waiting for feedback 

from the municipalities there will be a public hearing held. 

Commissioners directed Planner Ransford to send the proposed Master Plan on to the Township 

Attorney for review. 

B. Renewable Energy Language 

Planner Ransford reviewed his memo regarding the draft language to permit renewable energy 

uses within the Township. 

Commissioners discussed the language and the differences between the different types of 

alternative energy producers and the options that they would have as a Planning Commission if the 

requests would come in. 

Commissioners would like legal counsel to review and make suggestions and would like to review 

again when the full Commission would be available. 

10. New Business: None 

11. Public Comments: 

Chairperson Longcore opened the public comment section. 

An attendee asked if the Master Plan is available on the Township website and Planner Ransford 

responded that he believed that there is a link on the website but will clarify with staff. 

Mr. Yeomans updated the Planning Commission that there is some departmental work being done on 

the Planning and Zoning Department to improve processes. 

No more comments were made, and Chairperson Longcore closed the public comment section.  

12. Township Board Reports:  

Board liaison was not here to provide a report. 

13. Commissioner and Staff Comments: 

Question regarding the Master Plan on the website, and Mr. Yeomans informed the Commission that 

there is a link on the website to the Fresh Coast Planning website where the updates of the Master 

Plan are posted.  

14. Chairperson Longcore adjourned the meeting at 8:03 p.m. 

 

Next meeting February 21, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. 

◊ 



























































MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Allendale Charter Township Board of Trustees 
From:  Gregory L. Ransford, MPA 

Date:  January 21, 2022 
Re:  Centennial Map Amendment (Rezoning) Application 
__________________________________________________________________________ 

 
In accordance with Article 29 – Amendments and District Changes; Procedures of the 
Allendale Charter Township Zoning Ordinance (ACTZO), below we provide a synopsis of a map 
amendment (rezoning) request to the Zoning Ordinance Map. As you are aware, the Board of 
Trustees (BOT) is the approving body regarding map amendments.  
 
Board Responsibility 
 
Given that the Township is a charter township, two introductions and readings are required 
by the BOT to formally adopt a map amendment, each of which would occur at two separate 
meetings. Included with the application materials is the formal Zoning Map Amendment 
Ordinance for your consideration of adoption and is part of the first and second readings. As 
the BOT considers the request, your decision must be based on the Rezoning Evaluation 
Factors of Section 29.01D of the ACTZO, which includes provisions from the Allendale Charter 
Township Master Plan (ACTMP), both of which we outline further below. 
 
Request 
 
Bass River Development seeks to rezone part of 5380 Lake Michigan Drive, parcel number 70-
09-25-100-102, and all of 5316 Lake Michigan Drive, parcel number 70-09-25-100-072 from 
the Low Density Multiple Family Residential District (R-3) to the General Commercial Zoning 
District (GC). The area subject to rezoning contains approximately 6.66 acres. While each 
parcel contains an existing dwelling, and several accessory buildings exist within parcel 
number 70-09-25-100-102, the remainder of parcel number 70-09-25-100-102 is vacant and 
not proposed for rezoning. 
 
The Allendale Charter Township Planning Commission (ACTPC) provided a recommendation 
of adoption. Below are the relevant ACTMP and ACTZO provisions to assist with your 
consideration of the request, which were also reviewed by the ACTPC. 
 
Master Plan Considerations 
 
Future Land Use Map 

 
The Allendale Charter Township Master Plan and its Map, adopted on July 22, 2013, provides 
for the subject property within the General Commercial Classification, which is consistent with 
the GC Zoning District, as requested by the applicant. Given this, we provide relevant 
provisions from the General Commercial Classification below to assist with your review. 
 
For your convenience, below is a snapshot of the Master Plan Map for the subject parcel and 
surrounding properties. (Legend: Yellow = Medium Density Residential (MDR), Light Yellow = 
Low Density Residential (LDR), Red = General Commercial (GC), Gray = Industrial (I), Brown = 
High Density Residential (R-4), Blue Outline = Subject Property) 
 

 



 
 
Master Plan Text 
 
General Commercial Classification 
 
Chapter 3 – Goals and Strategies of the Master Plan provides: 

 

• Goal: Promote the development, redevelopment, and rehabilitation of industrial and commercial areas 
to provide attractive sites to a variety of enterprises which will strengthen the tax base and provide a 
place of employment for area residents.  

o While the applicant is not bound by any statements to demolish the existing structures, we 
expect those structures to be removed, which would promote the redevelopment of the 
commercial area along Lake Michigan Drive. As a result of the subject property location on Lake 
Michigan Drive and that it is master planned for the equivalent of the GC District, it appears this 
property is ripe for commercial development.  
 

Chapter 5 – Future Land Use, General Commercial (page 62) of the Master Plan provides: 
 

• That GC property will front on Lake Michigan Drive.  
o As you will note in the application materials and as aforementioned, the property proposed for 

rezoning fronts on Lake Michigan Drive. 

• That the 13 acre Geurink Farm is “recommended for commercial land use as virtually all of the land 
fronting on M-45 west of 56th Avenue to 68th Avenue is either zoned or planned for commercial use.”  

o Given that the subject property is the Geurink Farm, and the request is for the GC Zoning District, 
this provision of the ACTMP appears satisfied. 

 
Zoning Ordinance Considerations 
 
Surrounding Uses and Available Uses 
 
The ACTPC reviewed whether the proposed rezoning would result in a site that is compatible with surrounding 
zoning districts and uses, and is able to support the available uses within the GC Zoning District. The ACTPC found 
the property to be compatible with surrounding zoning districts and uses, and is capable to support the available 
uses.  
 
 
 



Map of the Zoning Ordinance 
 
For your convenience, below is a snapshot of the Zoning Ordinance Map for the subject area and surrounding 
properties. (Legend: Yellow = R-1 Low Density One-Family Residential District / Blue = PUD Planned Unit 
Development / Burgundy = R-4 Medium Density Multiple Family Residential Office / Salmon = R-3 Low Density 
Multiple Family Residential District / Purple = General Commercial / Blue Hatched Outline = Subject Area for 
Rezoning) 
 

 
 
Rezoning Evaluation Factors 
 
In accordance with Section 29.01D – Procedure for Changes of the ACTZO, and as performed by the ACTPC, the 
BOT shall review the factors therein when considering an amendment to the Zoning Map. Below is a copy of said 
section with our responses in italic font to assist with your review, as provided to the ACTPC. 
 

Section 29.01D – REZONING EVALUATION FACTORS.  
 
In considering a request for a district change, the Planning Commission and Township Board 
should evaluate the extent that the request meets the following: 
 

1. Consistency with the Master Plan text and its maps. 
 

Please see our Master Plan Considerations section above. 
 

2. Compatibility with the existing zoning districts as well as existing and possible future 
uses in those zoning districts. 

 
Please see our Zoning Ordinance Considerations section above 

 
3. The capability of the land to support the uses permitted by the requested zoning district 

and whether the uses permitted are capable of being adequately served by the 
following (a through e): 

 
We believe the land is capable to support the uses permitted by the GC Zoning District 
given its area, road frontage, and public utility access.  



 
a. The existing transportation network. 

 
The subject property abuts Lake Michigan Drive, with over 700 feet of frontage. 
Given this, we believe the property will be adequately served by the transportation 
network. 
 

b. Utilities. 
 

As aforementioned, public utilities are available at the property. Given this, we 
believe the subject property will be adequately served by utilities.  

 
c. The environment. 

 
We are not aware of any characteristics of the environment that would prevent the 
subject property from supporting the permitted uses. As a result, we believe the 
property will be adequately served by the environment. 
 

d. Other public improvements. 
 

We believe the subject property will be adequately served by other public 
improvements such as electricity, cable, and etcetera.  

 
e. Relevant governmental agencies. 

 
While the rezoning does not include a site plan, we anticipate that other 
governmental agencies, such as the Allendale Charter Township Fire Department, 
will be able to adequately serve the property at such time of application for 
development, particularly because those agencies are included in the review 
process.  

 
Public Hearing 
 
One public comment was received regarding the potential future use. The comment did not express opposition 
to the request.  
 
Recommendation 
 
While considering the rezoning evaluation factors and public comment, Commissioner Capala provided a motion 
to recommend adoption. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Westerling and carried 7-0. If you have any 
questions, please let us know. 
 
GLR 
Planner 
 
Attachments 



 
 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-02 
 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING CERTAIN LAND TO THE GC 
GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT, TO PROIVDE FOR 
SEVERABILITY, TO PROVIDE FOR REPEAL AND, TO ESTABLISH AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ALLENDALE, COUNTY OF OTTAWA, AND STATE OF 
MICHIGAN, ORDAINS: 
 

Section 1. Amendment. The Zoning Ordinance and Map of the Charter Township of 
Allendale, Ottawa County, Michigan, the map being incorporated by reference in the Zoning 
Ordinance for the Charter Township of Allendale pursuant to Article 4, shall be amended so the 
following land shall be rezoned to the GC General Commercial Zoning District. The land is in the 
Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa County, Michigan, and are described as follows: 
 

Part of the NW 1/4 of Section 25, T7N, R14W, Allendale Township, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, described as: Commencing at the North 1/4 corner of said 
Section 25; thence N89°31'35"W 672.42 feet along the North line of said NW 1/4 
to the East line of the West 1/2 of the NE 1/4 of said NW 1/4; thence S00°46'03"E 
85.32 feet along said East line to the South line of Lake Michigan Drive (M-45) and 
the PLACE OF BEGINNING of this description; thence S00°46'03"E 351.93 feet 
along said East line; thence S89°11'53"W 326.02 feet; thence N00°48'07"W 31.10 
feet; thence S89°11'53"W 346.00 feet; thence S00°48'07"E 20.32 feet to the NE 
corner of Lot 32, Dewpointe East No. 2 (as recorded in Liber 35 of Plats, Pages 60-
62); thence S89°11'53"W 171.77 feet along the North line of said Dewpointe East 
No. 2; thence N02°49'15"E 364.73 feet to the South line of Lake Michigan Drive 
(M-45); thence Easterly 148.74 feet along a 110,964.57 foot radius curve to the 
left, the chord of which bears S89°50'20"E 148.74 feet; thence S00°48'07"E 5.38 
feet; thence S89°31'35"E 480.90 feet; thence N00°46'03"W 6.65 feet; thence 
Easterly 49.86 feet along a 110,964.57 foot radius curve to the left, the chord of 
which bears S89°32'21"E 49.86 feet; thence S89°31'35"E 125.12 feet; thence 
S00°46'03"E 6.65 feet; thence S89°31'35"E 16.50 feet (the previous 8 calls being 
along said South line of Lake Michigan Drive) to the place of beginning. This parcel 
contains 6.66 acres. 70-09-25-100-072 & 70-09-25-100-102 PT 

 
Section 2.  Severable Provisions. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 



 
 2 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.   
 

Section 3.  Repeal. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance 
are hereby expressly repealed.   

 
Section 4.  Effective Date. This amendment to the Allendale Charter Township Zoning 

Ordinance was approved and adopted by the Township Board of Allendale Charter Township, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on __________________, 2022, after a public hearing as required 
pursuant to Michigan Act 110 of 2006, as amended; after introduction and a first reading on 
________________, 2022, and after posting and publication following such first reading as 
required by Michigan Act 359 of 1947, as amended.  This Ordinance shall be effective on 
______________________, 2022, which date is the eighth day after publication of a Notice of 
Adoption and Posting of the Zoning Map Amendment Ordinance in the _____________ as 
required by Section 401 of Act 110, as amended. However, this effective date shall be extended 
as necessary to comply with the requirements of Section 402 of Act 110, as amended. 

 
____________________________    ______________________________ 
Adam Elenbaas      Jody Hansen 
Township Supervisor       Township Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 3 

CERTIFICATE 
 

I, Jody Hansen, the Clerk for the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa County, 

Michigan, certify that the foregoing Allendale Charter Township Zoning Map Amendment 

Ordinance was adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board held on 

__________________, 2022.  The following members of the Township Board were present at 

that meeting:  __________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________.  The following members of the Township Board were absent:  

_____________________________________________________________________________.  

The Ordinance was adopted by the Township Board with members of the Board ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

voting in favor and members of the Board __________________________________________ 

______________________________________ voting in opposition.  Notice of Adoption of the 

Ordinance was published in the _______________ on ____________________, 2022.   

 

______________________________ 
Jody Hansen, Clerk 
Allendale Charter Township 

 
 





01/12/22 

1 
 

Ordinance 2022-03 
ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF 
THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF ALLENDALE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP, OTTAWA COUNTY, MICHIGAN (“THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE”), CONCERNING THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF A MORATORIUM FOR CERTAIN 
SPECIAL USES PERMITTED IN THE GC, GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, AND PROVIDING FOR THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ORDINANCE. 
 

 THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ALLENDALE, COUNTY OF OTTAWA, STATE 
OF MICHIGAN, ORDAINS: 
 

1. Amendment of Article 14 of the Zoning Ordinance.  Article 14 of the 

Allendale Charter Township Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended to add a new Section, 

Section 14.07, which shall state in its entirety as follows: 

SECTION 14.07.  MORATORIUM 

A. Section 14.07(a).  Findings. 

The Township Board has determined that: 

i. In accordance with the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, 2006 PA 110, as 

amended (the “MZEA”), the Charter Township of Allendale (the “Township”) has the 

authority to establish reasonable land use regulations to protect the public health, safety 

and welfare and in a manner consistent with applicable Michigan law. 

ii. Article 14, Section 14.03(O), permits the construction of mini warehouse 

and self-storage facilities as a special use in the GC, General Commercial District. 

iii. In reviewing the Master Plan, it has been determined that there is a potential 

for a negative impact on the long-term health and sustainability of the community if such 



01/12/22 

2 
 

developments are permitted to proliferate within certain areas of the General Commercial 

District.   

iv. The Township Board has submitted a request to the Planning Commission 

to review the language contained in Section 14.03 of the Zoning Ordinance to determine 

whether or not it is reasonable to continue to permit mini warehouse and self-storage 

facilities as a special use in the GC General Commercial District, or whether the use 

should be authorized in another area of the Township.   

v. Imposing a Moratorium, on a limited temporary basis, is reasonable and 

necessary in order to allow time for review of and potential amendments to the Zoning 

Ordinance.   

vi. A Moratorium should be imposed upon the issuance of any and all permits 

or licenses for the development of mini warehouse and self-storage facilities for a period 

of 12 months or until an amendment of the applicable Zoning Ordinance provision is 

adopted, whichever occurs first. 

B. Section 14.07(2).  Moratorium.   

There is hereby imposed a Moratorium upon the issuance of any and all permits 

or licenses for the development of mini warehouse and self-storage facilities as a special 

use in the GC General Commercial District Zone within the Township.  This moratorium 

shall not apply to requests for electrical permits or other permits necessary for routine 

maintenance of existing facilities. 

C. Section 14.07.  Term. 

The moratorium imposed by this Ordinance shall expire the earlier of 12 months 

from its effective date or the effective date of an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance. 



01/12/22 

3 
 

 Section 2. Severability.  If any provision or part of this ordinance is declared 

invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the validity or enforceability 

of the balance of the ordinance is not affected and remains in full force and effect. 

Section 3. Repeal.  All ordinances or parts thereof which are in conflict in whole 

or in part with any of the provisions of this Ordinance as of the effective date of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4. Effective Date.  This Ordinance was approved and adopted by the 

Township Board of the Allendale Charter Township, Ottawa County, Michigan, on 

_____________________, 2022, after introduction and a first reading on 

_____________________, 2022, and publication after first reading as required by Act 

359 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1947, as amended.  This Ordinance shall be effective 

on _____________________, 2022. 

________________________________  ________________________________ 
Adam Elenbaas, Township Supervisor  Jody Hansen, Township Clerk 
  



01/12/22 

4 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 I, Jody Hansen, the Clerk for the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa County, 

Michigan, certify that the foregoing Zoning Ordinance Amendment Ordinance was 

adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board held on _____________________, 

2022.  The following members of the Township Board were present at that meeting: 

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

___________.  The following members of the Township Board were absent: 

______________________________________________________________________

_______________.  The Ordinance was adopted by the Township Board with members 

of the Board _____________________________ 

___________________________________________ voting in favor and members of 

the Board _______________________________________________ voting in 

opposition.  The Ordinance or a summary of the Ordinance was published in the 

_____________________________ on _____________, 2022.  A certified copy of the 

Ordinance was sent to the Ottawa County Clerk, by first-class mail with postage pre-paid 

on _______________, 2022. 

       _______________________________ 
       Jody Hansen, Clerk 
       Allendale Charter Township 



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Allendale Charter Township Board of Trustees  
From:  Gregory L. Ransford, MPA 

Date:  February 8, 2022 
Re:  Proposed Text Amendments to the Allendale Charter Township Zoning Ordinance  
__________________________________________________________________________ 

 
In accordance with Article 29 – Amendments and District Changes; Procedures of the 
Allendale Charter Township Zoning Ordinance (ACTZO), below we provide our synopsis 
regarding several proposed text amendments to the ACTZO that were recommended for 
adoption by the Allendale Charter Township Planning Commission (ACTPC) at their February 
7, 2022 meeting.  
 
As you are aware, the Board of Trustees is the approving authority of proposed text 
amendments. 
 
Proposed Text Amendments 
 
Section 4.01D – Zoning Districts & Article 8 – [Title change] 
 
Pursuant to the ACTPC Work Program, the ACTPC seeks to reduce pubic confusion and 
discomfort regarding the title of Article 8, which reads “R-2 Medium Density One and Two 
Family Residential District.” As you may know, Article 8 does not permit new two-family 
buildings, but allows for the reconstruction of existing two-family buildings. Given this, the 
reference to two-family dwellings within the Article title has caused public confusion and 
concern that new two-family buildings could be constructed within the zoning district. 
Consequently, the ACTPC seeks to rename the Article as the “R-2 Medium Density One-Family 
Residential District.” Coupled with that revision, Section 4.01D – Zoning Districts of the ACTZO 
also required revision to match the Article 8 title name. Section 4.01D identifies all of the 
zoning districts within the Township.  
 
Section 13A.05(3) – Area Regulations, Side Yard & Section 13A.05(4) – Area Regulations, Rear 
Yard (Office District) 
 
Additionally pursuant to the ACTPC Work Program, the ACTPC seeks to allow commercial and 
industrial projects to benefit from a zero yard side setback when a shared design is proposed. 
During its deliberations, the ACTPC extended that concept to the rear yard as well. Given this, 
the ACTPC recommends that the Office District is amended to permit zero side yard and zero 
rear yard setbacks to allow for joint projects to occur across property lines. It is important to 
note that the current language of the ACTZO within this District currently allows a zero side 
yard setback scenario. In addition, the language currently allows a rear yard setback of fie (5) 
feet.  
 
Section 14.05B – Area Regulations, Side Yard & Section 14.05C – Area Regulations, Rear Yard 
(General Commercial District) 
 
Similar to the above, the ACTPC recommends that the General Commercial District is 
amended to permit zero side yard and zero rear yard setbacks to allow for joint projects to 
occur across property lines. Additionally similar to the above, it is important to note that the 
current language of the ACTZO within this District currently allows a zero side yard setback 
scenario. In addition, the language currently allows a rear yard setback of fie (5) feet. 
 



Section 15.05B – Area Regulations, Side Yard & Section 15.05C – Area Regulations, Rear Yard (Service Commercial 
District) 

 
Similar to the above, the ACTPC recommends that the General Commercial District is amended to permit zero 
side yard and zero rear yard setbacks to allow for joint projects to occur across property lines. Additionally similar 
to the above, it is important to note that the current language of the ACTZO within this District currently allows a 
zero side yard setback scenario. In addition, the language currently allows a rear yard setback of fie (5) feet. 

 
Section 16.06B – Area Regulations, Side Yard & Section 16.06C – Area Regulations, Rear Yard (Industrial District) 

 
Similar to the above, the ACTPC recommends that the Industrial District is amended to permit zero side yard and 
zero rear yard setbacks to allow for joint projects to occur across property lines.  
 
Section 14.07 – Moratorium 

 
Pursuant to your request, the ACTPC reviewed the draft language to place a moratorium on mini-warehouses or 
self-storage facilities within the General Commercial Zoning District for a period of one year.  

 
Through a vote of 4-0, with three members absent, all of the proposed text amendments were recommended 
for adoption.  

 
Public Hearing 

 
No comments were received during the public hearing.   

 
Recommendation 

 
As aforementioned, the Planning Commission unanimously recommended adoption of the proposed text 
amendments by a vote of 4-0. Attached are the proposed amendments in the form of the necessary Zoning Text 
Amendment Ordinances. Additionally attached is a document showing the proposed changes from the current 
language of the ACTZO regarding the zero setback provisions. We believe the changes to Section 4.01D and Article 
8 are self-explanatory. However, if you would like a document showing those changes, please let us know and we 
will create it for you. Otherwise, proposed additions are shown in red underlined text and proposed deletions are 
shown in red strikethrough text for the zero setback language.  
 
Board of Trustees Responsibilities 
 
As you know, any amendment to the ACTZO requires two readings by the Board of Trustees. Given the sensitivity 
of the moratorium effort, a first reading may be conducted at your February 14, 2022 meeting, and a second 
reading as well as adoption may occur at your February 28, 2022. Following both readings, publication and posting 
of each is required. No public hearings are required to be held by the Board of Trustees. 
 
If you have any questions, please let us know. 

 
GLR 
Planner 
 
Attachments 

 
 
 
 



Office (O) 
 
Section 13A.05 – Area Regulations. 
 
3. SIDE YARD. 

a. Where the side of a lot in the O Zone abuts upon the side of a lot in any R, RE or AG Zone, 
there shall be a side yard of not less than fifteen (15) feet. No parking shall be allowed in 
this area. 

b. There shall be a side yard of not less than twenty-five (25) feet on the street side of a corner 
lot. 

c. In other cases, a side yard for an office building shall not be required when a building is 
proposed in conjunction with the same or similar improvement within an abutting Lot as 
part of a larger project, provided building walls are built of fire-retardant construction in 
compliance with the State of Michigan building code. 

 
4. REAR YARD. 

a. Where the rear of a lot in the O Zone abuts upon the side of a lot in R, RE or AG Zone, there 
shall be a rear yard of not less than twenty-five (25) feet. 

b. In all other cases, there shall be a rear yard of not less thean five (5) feet. When a building 
is proposed in conjunction with the same or similar improvement within an abutting Lot as 
part of a larger project, no rear yard shall be required, provided building walls are built of 
fire-retardant construction in compliance with the State of Michigan building code. 

 
 
General Commercial (GC) 
 
Section 14.05 – Area Regulations 
 
B. SIDE YARD. 

1. Where a side lot line in the GC Zone abuts any R or AG Zone, there shall be a side yard of 
not less than 15 feet. No parking shall be allowed in this area except as may be allowed by 
Section 21.04.C. However, in cases where the abutting property is master planned for 
commercial or industrial land use the required building setback may be reduced to the 
setbacks as described in Section 14.05.B.2 below if it is determined by the Planning 
Commission that such reduction is not likely to adversely affect nearby residents and 
property. The Commission may require additional landscaping, solid fencing, a wall or 
other similar measures to reduce the impact of a closer building on nearby residents and 
properties. 

2. In all other cases, aA side yard for a commercial building shall not be required when a 
building is proposed in conjunction with the same or similar improvement within an 
abutting Lot as part of a larger project, provided building walls are built of fire-retardant 
construction in compliance with the State of Michigan building code. Where a building is 
not built on the lot line or where the wall of a structure facing the side lot line has windows 
or other openings, a 10 foot side yard shall be required. 



 
C. REAR YARD. 

1. The rear yard setback for lots in a GC Zone which abut any R Zone or AG Zone shall be a 
minimum of 25 feet. 

2. In all other cases, there shall be a rear yard of not less than five (5) feet. When a building 
is proposed in conjunction with the same or similar improvement within an abutting Lot as 
part of a larger project, no rear yard shall be required, provided building walls are built of 
fire-retardant construction in compliance with the State of Michigan building code. 

3. No accessory building shall be allowed in the required rear setback area of any lot. 
 
Service Commercial (C-3) 
 
Section 15.05 – Area Regulations 
 
B. SIDE YARD. 

1. Where the side of a lot in the C-3 Zone abuts upon the side of a lot in any R of AG Zone, 
there shall be a side yard of not less than fifteen (15) feet. No parking shall be allowed in 
this area. 

2. There shall be a side yard of not less than twenty five (25) feet on the street side of a corner 
lot. 

3. In all other cases, aA side yard for a commercial building shall not be required when a 
building is proposed in conjunction with the same or similar improvement within an 
abutting Lot as part of a larger project, provided building walls are built of fire-retardant 
construction in compliance with the State of Michigan building code. Where a building is 
not built on the lot line or where the wall of a structure facing the side lot line has windows 
or other openings, a ten (10) foot side yard shall be required. 

C. REAR YARD. 
1. Where the rear of a lot in a C-3 Zone abuts upon the side of a lot in any R Zone or AG Zone, 

there shall be a rear yard of not less than twenty-five (25) feet, provided that where a 
public alley separates the rear of a C-3 Zone lot from an R Zone lot, the full width of the 
alley may be considered as part of the rear yard for making the computation. 

2. In all other cases, there shall be a rear yard of not less than five (5) feet. When a building 
is proposed in conjunction with the same or similar improvement within an abutting Lot as 
part of a larger project, no rear yard shall be required, provided building walls are built of 
fire-retardant construction in compliance with the State of Michigan building code. 

3. No accessory building shall be allowed in the required rear yard area of any lot. 
 
Industrial (I) 
 
Section 16.06 – Area Regulations. 
 
B. Side Yard. 
 



A side yard of not less than fifteen (15) feet shall be required, provided that a minimum side yard 
of fifty (50) feet shall be required whenever a lot or parcel of land in the I – Industrial District abuts 
a lot or parcel of land in a residential zoning district. When a building is proposed in conjunction 
with the same or similar improvement within an abutting Lot as part of a larger project, no side 
yard shall be required, provided building walls are built of fire-retardant construction in 
compliance with the State of Michigan building code. 
 
C. Rear Yard. 
 

1. A rear yard of not less than twenty- five (25) feet shall be required, provided that a 
minimum rear yard of fifty (50) feet shall be required whenever a lot or parcel of land in 
the I – Industrial District abuts a lot or parcel of land in a residential zoning district. When 
a building is proposed in conjunction with the same or similar improvement within an 
abutting Lot as part of a larger project, no rear yard shall be required, provided building 
walls are built of fire-retardant construction in compliance with the State of Michigan 
building code. 

2. No accessory building shall be allowed in the required rear yard area of any lot. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-04 
  
 ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF 
ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP, OTTAWA COUNTY, MICHIGAN BY 
AMENDING SECTION 4.01D – ZONING DISTRICTS; BY AMENDING 
THE TITLE OF ARTICLE 8 – R-2 MEDIUM DENSITY SINGLE AND TWO-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT; BY AMENDING SECTION 13A.05(3) – 
AREA REGULATIONS, SIDE YARD; BY AMENDING SECTION 13A.05(4) 
– AREA REGULATIONS, REAR YARD; BY AMENDING SECTION 14.05B 
– AREA REGULATIONS, SIDE YARD; BY AMENDING SECTION 14.05C 
– AREA REGULATIONS, REAR YARD; BY AMENDING SECTION 15.05B 
– AREA REGULATIONS, SIDE YARD; BY AMENDING SECTION 15.05C 
– AREA REGULATIONS, REAR YARD; BY AMENDING SECTION 16.06B 
– AREA REGULATIONS, SIDE YARD AND; BY AMENDING SECTION 
16.06C – AREA REGULATIONS, REAR YARD, AND PROVIDING FOR 
REPEAL AND SEVERABILITY PROVISIONS, AND THE EFFECTIVE DATE 
OF THIS ORDINANCE. 

 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ALLENDALE, COUNTY OF OTTAWA, AND STATE OF MICHIGAN 

ORDAINS: 
 

Section 1.  Zoning Districts. Section 4.01D of the Allendale Charter Township Zoning 
Ordinance shall be amended to state in its entirety as follows. 
 

Section 4.01D – Zoning Districts  
 
R-2 Medium Density One-Family Residential District Regulations. 
 
Section 2.  Article 8 [Title]. The title of Article 8 of the Allendale Charter Township Zoning 

Ordinance shall be amended to state in its entirety as follows. 
 
R-2 Medium Density One-Family Residential District  
 
Section 3.  Area Regulations, Side Yard. Section 13A.05(3) of the Allendale Charter 

Township Zoning Ordinance shall be amended to state in its entirety as follows. 
 

Section 13A.05(3) – Area Regulations, Side Yard 
 
SIDE YARD. 
a. Where the side of a lot in the O Zone abuts upon the side of a lot in any R, RE 

or AG Zone, there shall be a side yard of not less than fifteen (15) feet. No 
parking shall be allowed in this area. 



b. There shall be a side yard of not less than twenty-five (25) feet on the street 
side of a corner lot. 

c. In other cases, a side yard for an office building shall not be required when a 
building is proposed in conjunction with the same or similar improvement 
within an abutting Lot as part of a larger project, provided building walls are 
built of fire-retardant construction in compliance with the State of Michigan 
building code. 

 
Section 4.  Area Regulations, Rear Yard. Section 13A.05(4) of the Allendale Charter 

Township Zoning Ordinance shall be amended to state in its entirety as follows. 
 

Section 13A.05(4) – Area Regulations, Rear Yard 
 
REAR YARD. 
a. Where the rear of a lot in the O Zone abuts upon the side of a lot in R, RE or AG 

Zone, there shall be a rear yard of not less than twenty-five (25) feet. 
b. In all other cases, there shall be a rear yard of not less than five (5) feet. When 

a building is proposed in conjunction with the same or similar improvement 
within an abutting Lot as part of a larger project, no rear yard shall be required, 
provided building walls are built of fire-retardant construction in compliance 
with the State of Michigan building code. 

 
Section 5.  Area Regulations, Side Yard. Section 14.05B of the Allendale Charter Township 

Zoning Ordinance shall be amended to state in its entirety as follows. 
 

Section 14.05B – Area Regulations, Side Yard 
 
SIDE YARD. 
1. Where a side lot line in the GC Zone abuts any R or AG Zone, there shall be a 

side yard of not less than 15 feet. No parking shall be allowed in this area except 
as may be allowed by Section 21.04.C. However, in cases where the abutting 
property is master planned for commercial or industrial land use the required 
building setback may be reduced to the setbacks as described in Section 
14.05.B.2 below if it is determined by the Planning Commission that such 
reduction is not likely to adversely affect nearby residents and property. The 
Commission may require additional landscaping, solid fencing, a wall or other 
similar measures to reduce the impact of a closer building on nearby residents 
and properties. 

2. A side yard for a commercial building shall not be required when a building is 
proposed in conjunction with the same or similar improvement within an 
abutting Lot as part of a larger project, provided building walls are built of fire-
retardant construction in compliance with the State of Michigan building code.. 
Where a building is not built on the lot line or where the wall of a structure 



facing the side lot line has windows or other openings, a 10 foot side yard shall 
be required. 

 
Section 6.  Area Regulations, Rear Yard. Section 14.05C of the Allendale Charter Township 

Zoning Ordinance shall be amended to state in its entirety as follows. 
 

Section 14.05C – Area Regulations, Rear Yard 
 
REAR YARD. 
1. The rear yard setback for lots in a GC Zone which abut any R Zone or AG Zone 

shall be a minimum of 25 feet. 
2. In all other cases, there shall be a rear yard of not less than five (5) feet. When 

a building is proposed in conjunction with the same or similar improvement 
within an abutting Lot as part of a larger project, no rear yard shall be required, 
provided building walls are built of fire-retardant construction in compliance 
with the State of Michigan building code. 

3. No accessory building shall be allowed in the required rear setback area of any 
lot. 

 
Section 7.  Area Regulations, Side Yard. Section 15.05B of the Allendale Charter Township 

Zoning Ordinance shall be amended to state in its entirety as follows. 
 

Section 15.05B – Area Regulations, Side Yard 
 
SIDE YARD. 
1. Where the side of a lot in the C-3 Zone abuts upon the side of a lot in any R of 

AG Zone, there shall be a side yard of not less than fifteen (15) feet. No parking 
shall be allowed in this area. 

2. There shall be a side yard of not less than twenty five (25) feet on the street 
side of a corner lot. 

3. A side yard for a commercial building shall not be required when a building is 
proposed in conjunction with the same or similar improvement within an 
abutting Lot as part of a larger project, provided building walls are built of fire-
retardant construction in compliance with the State of Michigan building code. 
Where a building is not built on the lot line or where the wall of a structure 
facing the side lot line has windows or other openings, a ten (10) foot side yard 
shall be required. 

 
Section 8.  Area Regulations, Rear Yard. Section 15.05C of the Allendale Charter Township 

Zoning Ordinance shall be amended to state in its entirety as follows. 
 

Section 15.05C – Area Regulations, Rear Yard 
 
REAR YARD. 



1. Where the rear of a lot in a C-3 Zone abuts upon the side of a lot in any R Zone 
or AG Zone, there shall be a rear yard of not less than twenty-five (25) feet, 
provided that where a public alley separates the rear of a C-3 Zone lot from an 
R Zone lot, the full width of the alley may be considered as part of the rear yard 
for making the computation. 

2. In all other cases, there shall be a rear yard of not less than five (5) feet. When 
a building is proposed in conjunction with the same or similar improvement 
within an abutting Lot as part of a larger project, no rear yard shall be required, 
provided building walls are built of fire-retardant construction in compliance 
with the State of Michigan building code. 

3. No accessory building shall be allowed in the required rear yard area of any lot. 
 
Section 9.  Area Regulations, Side Yard. Section 16.06B of the Allendale Charter Township 

Zoning Ordinance shall be amended to state in its entirety as follows. 
 

Section 16.06B – Area Regulations, Side Yard 
 
Side Yard. 
A side yard of not less than fifteen (15) feet shall be required, provided that a 
minimum side yard of fifty (50) feet shall be required whenever a lot or parcel of 
land in the I – Industrial District abuts a lot or parcel of land in a residential zoning 
district. When a building is proposed in conjunction with the same or similar 
improvement within an abutting Lot as part of a larger project, no side yard shall 
be required, provided building walls are built of fire-retardant construction in 
compliance with the State of Michigan building code. 
 
Section 10.  Area Regulations, Rear Yard. Section 16.06C of the Allendale Charter Township 

Zoning Ordinance shall be amended to state in its entirety as follows. 
 

Section 16.06C – Area Regulations, Rear Yard 
 
Rear Yard. 
1. A rear yard of not less than twenty-five (25) feet shall be required, provided 

that a minimum rear yard of fifty (50) feet shall be required whenever a lot or 
parcel of land in the I – Industrial District abuts a lot or parcel of land in a 
residential zoning district. When a building is proposed in conjunction with the 
same or similar improvement within an abutting Lot as part of a larger project, 
no rear yard shall be required, provided building walls are built of fire-retardant 
construction in compliance with the State of Michigan building code. 

2. No accessory building shall be allowed in the required rear yard area of any lot. 
 
Section 11.  Repeal. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance 

are hereby expressly repealed.   
 



Section 12.  Severable Provisions. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 
portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.   
 

Section 13.  Effective Date. This amendment to the Allendale Charter Township Zoning 
Ordinance was approved and adopted by the Township Board of Allendale Charter Township, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on ______________, 20___, after a public hearing as required pursuant 
to Michigan Act 110 of 2006, as amended; after introduction and a first reading on 
______________, 20___, and after posting and publication following such first reading as required 
by Michigan Act 359 of 1947, as amended.  This Ordinance shall be effective on 
______________________, 20___, which date is the eighth day after publication of a Notice of 
Adoption and Posting of the Zoning Text Amendment Ordinance in the __________________ as 
required by Section 401 of Act 110, as amended. However, this effective date shall be extended 
as necessary to comply with the requirements of Section 402 of Act 110, as amended. 
 
______________________________    ______________________________ 
Adam Elenbaas, Township Supervisor    Jody Hansen, Township Clerk 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CERTIFICATE 
 

I, Jody Hansen, the Clerk for the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa County, Michigan, 

certify that the foregoing Allendale Charter Township Zoning Text Amendment Ordinance was 

adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board held on ________________, 20___.  The 

following members of the Township Board were present at that meeting:  

__________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________.  The following members of the Township Board were absent:  

_____________________________________________________________________________.  

The Ordinance was adopted by the Township Board with members of the Board ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

voting in favor and members of the Board __________________________________________ 

______________________________________ voting in opposition.  Notice of Adoption of the 

Ordinance was published in the ____________________ on ____________________, 20___.  

 

______________________________ 
Jody Hansen, Clerk 
Allendale Charter Township 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
(Zoning Text Amendment Ordinance – Article 8 & Zero Setbacks) 

 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

)ss 
COUNTY OF OTTAWA ) 
 

The undersigned, Jody Hansen, the Allendale Charter Township Clerk, being first duly 

sworn, deposes and says as follows: 

1. That she posted a proposed Zoning Text Amendment Ordinance for Allendale 

Charter Township, after its first reading at a meeting of the Allendale Charter Township Board held 

on ________________, 20___ and its second reading at a meeting of the Allendale Charter 

Township Board held on __________________, 20___, in the Township Clerk's office and on the 

Township's website at www.allendale-twp.org on _______________, 20___. 

__________________________________ 
Jody Hansen, Clerk 
Allendale Charter Township 

 
Subscribed and sworn to before this 
_____ day of ____________________, 20___. 
 
______________________________ 
 
Notary Public, Ottawa County, Michigan 
Acting in Ottawa County, Michigan 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Substitute Library Page and Circulation Assistant Recommendation Sheri Christensen 

Prepared by Lydale Weaver 

On 2/28/2022 

Board of Trustees: 

We have reviewed applications for the Substitute Library Page and Circulation Assistant 

posted with the Township.  Our Library Director Mary Cook, and HR specialist Lydale Weaver 

were part of the interview process.  We are recommending Sheri Chrisensen for the Substitute 

Library Page and Circulation Assistant position. 

Sheri Christensen is strongly self-motivated, professional, and brings with her customer 

service experience.  We are excited to have Sheri be apart of the Allendale Township Library 

Staff, and look forward to her eagerness to learn about libraries.   

We recommend a pay rate of $15.25 for Sheri.  We are excited for Sheri coming aboard 

and what she will bring to Allendale Charter Township.   

 

 

 

Respectfully,  

Mary Cook and Lydale Weaver 

Library Director and HR Director 



Project 
Plutus
P R E P A R E D :     O C T O B E R  2 0 2 1

C H A D  D O O R N B O S ,  K E L L I  
M C G O V E R N ,  T I M  V A N B E N N E K O M ,  
K E V I N  Y E O M A N S



Are we capturing costs appropriately?

Developers Residents

2



When we strive to 
become better than 
we are, everything 
around us becomes 
better too.

Presentation title 3

R A N D O M  I N T E R N E T  Q U O T E



Testing our Assumptions

Questions we’re asking
• Internal Operat ions?

• Provided Services?

• Internal Communicat ions?

Developed a  Shared Process Map

Tr i -week ly meet ings

• External  Communicat ions?

Welcome Packet

• Costs  of  Serv ices?

• What do we charge?

• Charges Appropriate?

4



Land Use and Development Tracking Process

5

Planning 
Commission

Board of Trustees Pre-Construction Monitoring Closeout

Planning Development

External Governmental Agencies/Processes



Costs with Planning

6

Pre-Application
Application 
Submittal

Application 
Review

Site Plan Review

PC Review Public Hearing Board Review Public Hearing

Board Decision
Record Keeping 

and Notifications



Example Project

Administrative
1. Conversat ions with 

Township 
Supervisor,  
P lanner,  and 
others.

2. Ini t ial  Appl icat ion 
Submitted

3. Si te  P lan Review

A. In i t ia l  proposa l  not  
feas ib le

4. New appl icat ion 
Submitted

5. Si te  P lan Review

PC
6. Planning 

Commission 
Meet ing

7. Not ice of  Publ ic  
Hear ing/Mai l ing 
not ice to  neighbors

8. Planning 
Commission Publ ic  
Hear ing

9. Prepare 
Recommendation 
Letter  to  Board

Board
10.Board of Trustees 

Meeting: 1st

Reading

11.Notice of Public 
Hearing/Mai l ing 
notice to 
neighbors

12.Board of Trustees 
Public Hearing/2nd

Reading

13.Ordinance 
Adopted

7

Administrative

14.Notice of 
ordinance 
amendment

15.Record amended 
ordinance(TWP)

16.Planner updates 
zoning ordinance

17.Engineer updates 
maps



Presentation title 20XX 8

Example Project Debits Credits  
02/12/2021 CR RCPT Escrow Payment 1,500.00 (1,500.00)
03/09/2021 AP INV Planning Services 561.00 (939.00)
04/13/2021 AP INV Engineering: Site Plan Review 1,658.25 719.25
05/20/2021 CR RCPT Escrow Payment 1,719.25 (1,000.00)
05/25/2021 AP INV Engineering: Site Plan Review 27.00 (973.00)
07/27/2021 AP INV Engineering: Site Plan Review 27.75 (945.25)
07/27/2021 AP INV Planning Services 216.00 (729.25)
08/10/2021 AP INV Engineering: Site Plan Review 206.25 (523.00)
08/24/2021 AP INV Planning Services 1,260.00 737.00
09/08/2021 CR RCPT Escrow Payment 1,237.00 (500.00)
09/14/2021 AP INV Engineering: Site Plan Review 206.25 (293.75)
09/14/2021 AP INV Planning Services 420.00 126.25 
10/12/2021 AP INV Engineering: Site Plan Review 1,471.00 1,597.25 
10/26/2021 AP INV Planning Services 372.00 1,969.25 
11/09/2021 AP INV Engineering: Site Plan Review 260.50 2,229.75 

TOTAL CHARGES 6,686.00 CURRENT BALANCE 2,229.75 



Our intention

In order to be more transparent with developers 
and more equitably balance costs of projects.

• Increase initial escrow: $1,500 to $6,000

• Charge developers for expenses directly related 
to their projects (E.G. Publishing Fees).

• Summary sent every month

9



Thank you
P R E S E N T E R  N A M E  |  E M A I L  A D D R E S S  |  W E B S I T E

10



1 
 

Resolution 2018 
Zoning Escrow Fee Policy 

 

WHEREAS, the Allendale Charter Township Zoning Ordinance provides that certain fees to be 
paid to the Township for various zoning applications shall be established by Township Board 
resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the cost to the Township in reviewing applications for various zoning approvals can 
be significant especially when there are additional and at times extraordinary out-of-pocket 
expenses above and beyond what is associated with the typical review of minor projects and 
which cannot always be accurately predicted at the time an application is made; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board believes that it is reasonable and appropriate that the actual 
costs and expenses associated with reviewing such applications should be properly borne by the 
applicant rather than by the taxpayers of the Township; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board intends that zoning review fees and escrow amounts be 
reasonably proportionate to the costs incurred by the Township for the particular application 
processed, and that such fees and escrow amounts be used to defray the cost of administering 
and enforcing the Township Zoning Ordinance and Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, Public Act 110 
of 20076, MCL 125.3406 et seq; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
OF ALLENDALE, OTTAWA COUNTY, MICHIGAN, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Township Board hereby adopts the basic fee schedule as set forth below, the fees of 
which are considered to cover only the Township’s consideration of the application at a 
regularly scheduled Planning Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals, or a Township Board 
meeting, including publication and mailing of applicable notices. 

BASIC APPLICATION FEE SCHEDULE 

Variance $350 
Zoning Board of Appeals $250500 

Special Use Land Requests $250500 
Rezoning Requests $400500 

Planned Unit Development Requests $600 
Special Meeting Requests $500 

Administrative Review $500 
Site Plan Review $500 

Site Condo or Platting $500 
 



2 
 

The basic application fee schedule set is intended to cover the following general expenses 
incurred by the Township. 

a. Hearings held at regular Planning Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals, and 
Township Board meetings to consider application; 
 

b. Publication of legal notices in the Advance Newspaper, or another newspaper of 
general circulation within the Township designated by the Township Supervisor. 

 
 

c.b. Mailing of legal notices to all property owners and occupants as may be required 
by the Zoning Ordinance or the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, CITE: 
 

d.c. Basic review by the Township Building Official and Township Zoning 
Administrator; 

 
e.d. Drafting of an ordinance amending the Township Zoning Ordinance and 

Zoning Map, special land use permits, and records of variance, if applicable. 
 

2. In addition, the Township Board hereby adopts the Escrow Account Schedule set forth 
below, which shall be considered necessary to cover the additional costs and expense 
incurred by the Township in processing zoning applications. 

ESCROW ACCOUNT SCHEDULE 

Planned Unit Development Projects $1,500 
Site Plan Reviews $1,500 
Special Land Uses $1,500 

Subdivision Plat Reviews $1,500 
Zoning Ordinance Amendments $1,500 

Site Condo Reviews $1,500 
Private Road Approvals $1,500 

Variance or Zoning Ordinance 
Interpretation Requests 

$250 

Open Space Developments $1,500 
Wireless Communication Facility 

Applications 
$1,000 

 

Industrial/Commercial Request $6,000 
Residential Development $6,000 

Individual Residential Application $1,500 
Wireless Communication Facility Application $1,000 

Variance $500 

Commented [KY1]: Removed because these cost will not 
be covered by the above fees, but covered as an as incurred 
expense through the project’s escrow. 

Commented [KY2]: Delete this table 



3 
 

 

The Township Supervisor or the Township’s designee has the discretion to waive the Escrow Fund 
requirement in the event the funds will not be necessary. 

The Escrow Account shall be maintained in a Fund the trust and agency fund of the Township as 
provided in this Resolution and shall be used to pay for and cover all expenses directly incurred 
by the Township (including the Planning Commission, the Zoning Board of Appeals, and the 
Township Board), in processing, considering, reviewing and approving or denying applications. 
These additional expenses include, but are not limited to, the following: 

a. Special Meetings, including the subcommittee meetings, at which the application is 
reviewed or considered; 
 

b. Additional meetings deemed necessary due to a lack of information provided by the 
applicant, or any other cause attributable to the applicant; 

 
c. Legal services provide to the Township, including but not limited to review of 

application by the Township attorney, attendance at meetings and/or public hearings, 
and preparation of appropriate documentation, including but not limited to opinion 
letters, approving resolutions or ordinances; 

 
d. Planning services provided by the Township Planner, including but not limited to 

review of application by the Township Planner, and preparation of appropriate 
documentation, including buy not limited to planning reports; 

 
e. Engineering services provided by the Township Planner; including buy not limited to 

review of application by the Township engineer, and preparation of appropriate 
documentation, including but not limited to engineering reports; 

 
f. Additional nNotices of public hearing(s) or meeting(s); 
 
g. Traffic studies; 
 
h. Environmental impact studies; 
 
i. Review and consideration of proposed private roads; 
 
j. Obtaining a court reporter and/or recording devices, including transcription costs; and  
 
k. Other similar services and expenses; 



4 
 

When an Escrow Account is required, it shall be established at the time the application is filed. 
No application shall be processed by the Township prior to the Basic Fee set forth in Section 1 of 
this Resolution being paid and the Escrow Account being established. 

As needed, the Township Supervisor or the Supervisor’s designee shall require additional monies 
from the applicant to maintain a minimum escrow balance of $500. Additional fees for the 
Wireless Communication Facilities requests are not permitted, as $1,000 is the amount allowed 
by the law under the Zoning Enabling Act. If the Escrow account is depleted to the extent that 
there are insufficient funds to continue review, the matter shall be placed on hold, and the matter 
will be removed from the current agenda of the Planning Commission, the Zoning Board of 
Appeals, or the Township Board as applicable, and the matter will be adjourned until such time 
as the required fees are deposited into the Escrow Account, or an appeal of the matter has been 
decided in favor of the applicant. 

The Township may draw funds from the applicant’s Escrow Account to reimburse the Township 
for expenses incurred by the Township directly related to the review and processing of the 
application, or to distribute the funds to pay its agencies or agents upon verification of the 
expenses incurred. The Township Treasurer or their designee shall maintain records regarding 
Escrow Accounts and shall authorize the disbursement of Escrow Account funds in writing. Such 
Escrow Account funds shall be accounted for separately in the trust and agencya Township fFund, 
utilizing individual identifying numbers for each such account. Any excess funds will be refunded 
by the Township to the applicant, without interest, after completion of the project or matter. 

No final approval, building permit, certificate of use and occupancy permit, or other similar 
approvals will be granted or issued by the Township unless all required fees have been deposited 
into the Escrow Account, except as otherwise determined by the Township Board Supervisor or 
their designee for good cause. 

In the event an applicant objects to the reasonableness of the amount of an Escrow Account or 
to how the Township has applied the funds from the Escrow Account, the aggrieved applicant 
may appeal the Township’s determination regarding the matter to the Township Board. All such 
appeals shall be in writing and shall be made not later than 30 days after receipt of the disputed 
Escrow Account billing or of the decision of the Supervisor or the Supervisor’s designee. The 
Township Board shall establish a date and time to hear the appeal and shall permit the applicant 
or the applicant’s agent to appear before the Township Board at a regularly scheduled Board 
meeting to object to and appeal the decision of the Supervisor or the Supervisor’s designee. The 
Township Board may affirm, modify, or reverse the decision of the Supervisor or the Supervisor’s 
designee. 

 

3. All fees established by this resolution shall be effective immediately. 
4. All resolutions in conflict in whole or in part with this resolution are hereby revoked to 

the extent of the conflict. 



5 
 

 

Yes:______________________________________________________ 

 

No:______________________________________________________ 

 

Resolution declared adopted on ______________________________ 

 

 

 



ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
NOTICE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

CLOSEOUT PUBLIC HEARING 
FOR MICHIGAN COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) FUNDING 

FOR PROPERTY SITE READINESS & FEASIBILITY STUDY 

The Allendale Charter Township Board will hold a closeout public hearing for the purpose of affording 
citizens an opportunity to submit comments and receive a final report on the completion of the 
property site readiness & feasibility study CBDG grant.  

The CDBG grant provided funding to assist in completing a feasibility study for the development of an 
industrial park at 11800 56th Ave. Allendale, MI 49401. The CDBG project benefitted at least 51% low to 
moderate income persons; Zero persons were displaced because of the project. 

WHEN: Monday, March 14, 2022 

TIME: 6:00 P.M. 

WHERE: Allendale Charter Township; 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale MI 49401

Interested parties are invited to comment on the project in person at the public hearing or in writing. 
Written comments will be accepted prior to the hearing at the Township Office or by email, and addressed 
to Jody Hansen, clerk@allendale-twp.org  

This notice is posted in compliance with PA 267 of 1976 as amended (Open Meetings Act), MCLA 41.72a 
(2) (3) and the Americans Disabilities Act (ADA).

The Allendale Charter Township Board will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, 
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the 
meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting or public hearing upon seven (7) day notice to the 
Allendale Charter Township Board by writing or calling the following:  

Jody Hansen, Clerk 
6676 Lake Michigan Drive. 
P.O. Box 539 
Allendale, MI 49401 

(616) 892-3111

mailto:clerk@allendale-twp.org

	2-14-2022 Proposed Minutes.pdf
	PROPOSED
	PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	FEBRUARY SESSION 1ST DAY

	ADP686E.tmp
	Project Plutus
	Are we capturing costs appropriately?
	When we strive to become better than we are, everything around us becomes better too.
	Testing our Assumptions
	Land Use and Development Tracking Process
	Costs with Planning
	Example Project
	Slide Number 8
	Our intention
	Thank you

	CDBG Grant Hearing.pdf
	ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP


